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          D. Joseph Buys 

          1016 High Street 

          Marquette, MI 49855-3609 

 

          February 27, 2007 

 

Marquette Board of Light and Power (MBLP) 

2200 Wright Street 

Marquette, MI 49855 

 

Dear MBLP Board Members: 

1. I wish to address apparent MBLP violations of the City Charter bidding policies and what 

appears to be an alarming lack of internal controls and sound business practices. Specifically, 

the purchase of the east warehouse door and opener, and a gate operator, were awarded by the 

MBLP on September 26th, 2006 to Wolverine Door Service for $8,741.75, without obtaining 

bids as prescribed by the City Charter (see Atch-11). Below is an extract of the minutes: 

2. “It was moved by C. Piirala, seconded by K. Wanberg and unanimously carried to award the 
replacement of the Warehouse east garage shop door/operator to Wolverine Door per their 

quote meeting specifications totaling $8,741.75. R. Goodney questioned if there are other local 

vendors? K. Juntila responded there are limited companies that can provide these large doors. 

He added Wolverine installed the previous doors and can provide a matching door and inter-

changeability of parts. R. Goodney questioned if sensors will be installed. K. Juntila responded 

in the negative.” 

3. I requested and obtained copies of MBLP documents related to this purchase under the Free-

dom of Information Act (FOIA) (Atch-6). I am a retired Government auditor and Marquette 

resident. I am attaching copies of these documents with attachment numbers I assigned for 

your ease of referencing.  

4. Through my examination of these documents, and through various discussions, and observa-

tions, it is my opinion this purchase is indicative of a serious lack of sound internal controls 

being implemented by senior MBLP management, the lack of adherence to sound business 

practices and the City charter, and possibly the lack of adequate Board policies under which 

the MBLP should operate. In addition, I found several indications of misleading or incom-

plete information being provided to the Board and senior management. I feel this transaction 

is very symbolic of others I have heard of, but have not reviewed, and I’m convinced this is 

not an isolated incident. It stands on its own merit as being very significant.  

5. Following are my observations (and my comments),  not necessarily in the order of signifi-

cance: 

a. Bids were not obtained as required by the City Charter. As noted above, the 

MBLP awarded an $8,741.75 bid to Wolverine Door Service without obtaining bids 

as prescribed (amounts over $3,000) by the charter (Atch-11). 

b. MBLP minutes did not accurately reflect the items to be included in the award. 

Specifically, the minutes cite “Warehouse east garage shop door/operator…” but the 
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proposal and award included the door, operator, and an industrial gate operator and 

heater, a separate $4,353.22 line item (Atch-1). 

c. The Board was told there were limited companies to bid the job, which was not 

the case. Per the minutes, the Board was told by the executive director “K. Juntila re-
sponded there are limited companies that can provide these large doors…” In fact there 

are at least 3 local companies in the Yellow Pages that could probably provide these 

items. Per my conversation with Overhead Doors in Marquette, they could have bid on 

and installed these them but never had the opportunity. In 2002 (Atch-9) bids for a near-

identical west door were obtained from Overhead Doors at $3,597. According to the 

Charter “…sealed bids shall be obtained unless the Board of Light and Power by unani-

mous resolution of those present at the meeting, based upon the written recommendations 

of the Director, determines that no advantage to the city would result from competitive 

bidding…” (Atch-11). No such statement was made in the letter from Mr. Lynch (super-

intendent of distribution) to the Mr.Kirby (executive director) (Atch-2) nor any such 

statement I’m aware of made to the Board by the director.  

d. The criterion used to award on the basis of matching doors was unsubstantiated.  
The letter from Mr. Lynch (Atch-2) cites “operators and garage doors will match units 

installed in 2002…” I feel this was an unsupported justification, as these doors are rather 

standard in nature and that was confirmed in my conversations with the owner of Over-

head Door. The question arises with this type of justification, whoever gets the first door 

to replace, gets subsequent replacements because of the “matching” requirement? Match-

ing what? If matching were such an important criteria in the specifications, why was it 

not included in the requisition (Atch-3), or the proposal, or anywhere else? 

e. Inaccurate information and/or justification for the door opener were provided to 

the executive director and possibly the Board. In the September 12, 2006 letter 

(Atch-2) from Mr. Lynch to the executive director, the statement was made the door 

and operators were the original installed with the office complex. I understand the 

door opener had been replaced several years ago and was in perfectly good working 

order. There was no justification provided on why the opener should be replaced. 

There was also no mention of a trade-in value if it was working as I understand it was. 

There also was no mention of why the gate operator and heater needed replacement 

and those items were not even mentioned in Mr. Lynch’s letter or anywhere else, ex-

cept the proposal (Atch-1) from Wolverine.  

f. Requisitioning documentation was inadequate.  MBLP requisition order no 21481 

(Atch-3) cites “Purchase of east garage shop door and operators” for $8,741.75. There 

was no specific mention of the gate operator or heater in that requisition, only the 

door and operators.  

g. There was no invoice from Wolverine to support the purchase of the gate opera-

tor and heater. I was provided with Wolverine invoice #10016 for $4,388.53 for the 

door and operator (Atch-5), and invoice #10095 for $416.90 (Atch-10) (total 

$4,805.43, a difference of $3,936.32 from the receiving document (Atch-4) shows the 

amount of $8,741.75. It does not appear invoice #10095 (Atch-10) is wholly related to 

this purchase as there are references to approvals given before (8/29/06) the Board 
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approved the purchase. In addition, there was no reference on this or other invoices 

from Wolverine citing the requisition number (Atch-3) on this purchase.  

h. Receiving procedures are not adequate to ensure the MBLP is getting what it is 

paying for. The receiving report (Atch-4) for $8,741.75 was signed for as received by 

Chris Swenor, a person who works in the warehouse and who I believe has little or no 

knowledge of the adequacy of the door, operator, and gate operator, and heater being 

installed to specifications. This was done when there was another knowledgeable in-

dividual available who has building maintenance as a part of his job description. Ad-

ditionally, the warehouse person had only the description of a quantity of 1 (lined 

through by someone as though it was not received), unit of Each, and the description 

of “Purchase of east garage shop door and operators” to sign as received. No mention 

of the gate and heater. I feel this is a very serious breach of sound business practices, 

and internal controls.  

i. Warranty information was lacking. The warranty for the door operator was faxed 

(Atch-8) from Wolverine to the MBLP on Jan 31st, the same day the MBLP received 

my FOIA request for warranty information. I was provided no warranty documenta-

tion on the door, gate operator, or heater and so have little reason to think they exist. 

In addition, there was no mention of warranty included in any written justifications, 

proposals, or requisitioning documentation that I could see.  

j. Disposal policies and procedures are not adequate and/or followed. There was no 

mention of the disposition of the old door, opener, and gate opener in the justifica-

tions, proposal, or other known documentation. A written statement by David Lynch 

on January 31, 2007, stated (See Atch-7) the “Contract called for the complete re-

placement of door, track, operator, and disposal of the old door and hardware.” I re-

ceived no documentation with my FOIA request addressing disposition and do not 

know what the contract being referred to is. That attachment further says an MBLP 

employee asked Wolverine to leave the old door (albeit without management permis-

sion) for him (as apparently it was of little value to Wolverine). However, Wolverine 

took the old opener. The lack of specificity in requisitions and proposals as to disposi-

tion of replaced item is a poor business practice in that, e.g., the vendor leaves the old 

door, leaves, and says he doesn’t want it. There would be little recourse to the MBLP 

but to dispose of this big door, probably at considerable additional cost and time. Why 

would you not put disposition terms in writing? 

6. I respectfully ask the Board to investigate the circumstances surrounding this purchase to de-

termine whether internal controls were adequate, were being circumvented and if so, the rea-

sons, and whether the Board has established adequate policies (may supplement the City 

Charter) to address purchasing and disposition of MBLP assets. Further, I suggest  

a. If the Board determines existing internal controls are adequate but were circumvented, 

direct the Executive Director to initiate necessary training and/or disciplinary actions, 

if warranted. 

b. If the Board determines internal controls and procedures are not adequate, direct the 

Executive Director to implement adequate controls.  
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c. The Board should expect and demand full and accurate responses from management 

when they ask questions. Furthermore, management has a responsibility to the Board 

to inform the Board of any information, including legal requirements, which will per-

mit the Board to make an informed decision.  

d. The Board should direct the Executive Director to obtain bids on future purchases in 

compliance with the City charter. 

e. The Board should consider hiring an outside auditor to examine the internal controls 

and procedures concerning at least contracting and purchasing and expanding the 

scope if the Board determines it is warranted.  

7. I further respectfully ask the Board to provide a response to me, preferably in writing, within 

the next month, addressing these issues and any corrective action taken or directed. If you 

have questions or wish to contact me, please write to me at the above address, call me at 

(906) 226-2624, or email me at jbuys @ up.net. Thank you. 

       Sincerely yours, 
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